
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ANTHEM PARK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

Agenda Package 
 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Meeting 

 
 

Date & Time:  
Friday 

December 13, 2019 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 

Location: 
Anthem Park 

Clubhouse 
2090 Continental Street 

St. Cloud, Florida 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials 
are considered   DRAFTS  prior  to  presentation and  Board acceptance, approval or 
adoption. 



[X] 250 International Parkway, Suite 280 [ ] 15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175 
 Lake Mary FL  32746 Tampa, Florida 33647 
 321-263-0132 Ext. 4205 813-374-9105 
 

Anthem Park 
Community Development District 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

December 6, 2019 
 
 
 

Anthem Park 
Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anthem Park Community Development 
District is scheduled for Friday, December 13, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. at the Anthem Park Clubhouse, 
2090 Continental Street, St. Cloud, Florida. 

 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation 
for your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature.  Staff will present their reports at the meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact me.  I look forward to seeing you there. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Ms. Comings-Thibault  
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
District Manager 

 
cc: Attorney 

Engineer 
District Records 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

District: ANTHEM PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Date of Meeting: Friday, December 13, 2019 
Time: 9:00 AM 
Location: Anthem Park Clubhouse  

2090 Continental Street 
St. Cloud, FL 34769 

Dial-in Number: 712-775-7031 
Guest Access Code: 109-516-380 

Agenda 

I. Roll Call  

II. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda 
items-Supervisors will respond during agenda item presentation) 

 

III. Administration Items  

A. Amenity Manager Report     Exhibit 1 

 Call Report To Be 
Distributed 

 Presentation of the Monthly Landscape Maintenance Visual 
Scorecard 

 

B. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Help November 8, 2019 

    Exhibit 2 

C. Consideration for Acceptance – The October 2019 Unaudited 
Financial Report 

    Exhibit 3 

IV. Business Items  

A. Consideration of Yellowstone Landscape Agreement Exhibit 4 

B. Consideration of Second Amendment to Amenity Facility 
Management, Pool Monitoring, General Facility Maintenance, and 
Janitorial Maintenance Services Agreement 

Exhibit 5 

C. Consideration of Brick Replacement Proposals Exhibit 6 

 Lee Masonry - $1,550.00  

 Phipps Masonry - $2,200.00  

 Scott Teeds Concrete - $1,200.00  



Page 2 of 2 
 

IV. Business Items (continued)  

D. Discussion of Neptune Concept Plans Exhibit 7 

V. Staff Reports  

A. District Manager  

B. District Attorney  

C. District Engineer  

VI. Supervisors Requests  

VII. Audience Comments – New Business – (limited to 3 minutes per 
individual for non-agenda items) 

 

VIII. Adjournment  

 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



 
 

 
Amenity Center Management Report 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2019                   Submitted by: Maria Agosta 

I. Facility Discussion and Completed Projects for November & December 

 Project Timeline  

- Christmas decorations 

- Gym Equipment 

- Dog Bag Dispensers  

- Resurface tennis courts 

- Playground Shades 

 Brick Wall 

 Call report (TBD) 

 Yellowstone grade sheets  

 

II. Amenity Management  

 We had 6 parties in November 

 We have 6 parties in December 

 

 

III. Events & Resident Requests 

 “Block Party” October 19th cancelled due to weather. It has been rescheduled for Saturday, 

February, 1st. 

 

 

 

 

 

 











  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
ANTHEM PARK 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
 4 
 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anthem Park Community Development 5 
District was held on Friday, November 8, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. at Anthem Park Clubhouse 2090 Continental 6 
Street, St. Cloud, Florida 34769. 7 
 8 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 9 

Ms. Thibault called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 10 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  11 

Kenneth Williams Board Supervisor, Chairman 12 
Gerald Harrington  Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 13 
Blair Possenriede  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 
Jorge Arce  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary  15 

Also present were: 16 

Patricia Thibault District Manager, DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC. 17 
Maria Agosta  Amenity Manager  18 
Julie Cortina  Amenity Manager 19 
Neysa Borkett  District Counsel  20 
 21 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the November 8, 2019 Anthem Park 22 
CDD Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting. 23 
 24 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 25 
agenda items-Supervisors will respond during agenda item presentation) 26 

       There being none, the next item followed. 27 
 28 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administration Items 29 

A. Exhibit 1: Amenity Manager Report 30 

 Call Report 31 

 Presentation of the Monthly Landscape Maintenance Visual Scorecard 32 

B. Exhibit 2: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular 33 
Meeting Held October 11, 2019 34 

On a MOTION by Mr. Harrington, SECONDED by Mr. Arce, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 35 
approved the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Held October 11, 2019 for the 36 
Anthem Park Community Development District. 37 

C. Exhibit 3: Consideration for Acceptance – The September 2019 Unaudited Financial Report 38 

On a MOTION by Mr. Harrington, SECONDED by Mr. Williams, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 39 
accepted the September 2019 Unaudited Financial Report for the Anthem Park Community Development 40 
District. 41 

 42 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items 43 

A. Exhibit 4: Consideration & Approval of Resolution 2020-01, FY 2019-2020 Budget Amendment  44 



Anthem Park CDD November 8, 2019 
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 3 
 
On a MOTION by Mr. Harrington, SECONDED by Mr. Williams, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 45 
approved the Resolution 2020-01, FY 2019-2020 Budget Amendment for the Anthem Park Community 46 
Development District. 47 

B. Exhibit 5: Consideration of Second Amendment to Amenity Facility Management, Pool 48 
Monitoring, General Facility Maintenance, and Janitorial Maintenance Services Agreement 49 

This item has been tabled to the next meeting. 50 

C. Exhibit 6: Presentation for Consideration of Landscape Maintenance Professional Financial 51 
Summaries 52 

 Servello & Son, Inc. 53 

 Yellowstone Landscaping 54 

On a MOTION by Ms. Possenriede, SECONDED by Mr. Arce, WITH Mr. Williams Voting YAY and 55 
Mr. Harrington Voting NAY, the Board approved the motion to keep Yellowstone Landscaping for the 56 
Anthem Park Community Development District. 57 

 58 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Consent Agenda 59 

A. Exhibit 7: Ratification of Yellowstone Mainline Repair in Park Proposal - $409.45 60 

On a MOTION by Mr. Williams, SECONDED by Mr. Arce, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board ratified 61 
the Yellowstone Mainline Repair in Park proposal in the amount of $409.45 for the Anthem Park 62 
Community Development District. 63 

 64 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 65 

A. District Manager 66 

There being none, the next item followed. 67 

B. District Attorney 68 

There being none, the next item followed. 69 

C. District Engineer 70 

There being none, the next item followed. 71 
 72 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 73 

There being none, the next item followed. 74 
 75 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – New Business 76 

There being none, the next item followed. 77 
 78 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 79 

Ms. Thibault asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 80 
adjourn the meeting. There being none, Ms. Possenriede made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  81 

On a MOTION by Ms. Possenriede, SECONDED by Mr. Harrington, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 82 
adjourned the meeting for the Anthem Park Community Development District. 83 
 84 



Anthem Park CDD November 8, 2019 
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 3 
 
*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 85 
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 86 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 87 

 88 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 89 
meeting held on ________________________. 90 

 91 

Signature  Signature 

 92 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 93 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman  94 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



Anthem Park 

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Period Ending

October 31, 2019



 General Series 2016 Series 2016A2 Consolidated

 Fund Debt Service Debt Service Total

ASSETS:  

CASH - O&M Checking Accts. 17,801$         -$                     -$                        17,801$           

MMK ACCOUNT 432,758         -                       -                          432,758           

DEBIT CARD 2,338              -                       -                          2,338               

INVESTMENTS:

REVENUE FUND -                     137,524           23,394                160,918           

RESERVE TRUST FUND -                     279,063           36,888                315,950           

INTEREST FUND -                     -                       -                          -                       

PREPAYMENT FUND -                     -                       4,914                  4,914               

COST OF ISSUANCE -                     -                       -                          -                       

ESCROW FUND -                     -                       -                          -                       

CONSTRUCTION FUND -                     -                       -                          -                       

DEPOSITS - UTILITIES 240                 -                       -                          240                  

PREPAID EXPENSES -                     -                       -                       

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -                     -                       -                          -                       

ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 787,000         558,416           76,148                1,421,564        

ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLES -                     -                       -                       

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS -                     3,923               540                     4,463               

TOTAL ASSETS 1,240,137$    978,925$         141,884$            2,360,946$      

LIABILITIES:

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 8,504$            -$                     -$                        8,504$             

DEFERRED REVENUE ON-ROLL 787,000         558,416           76,148                1,421,564        

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 4,463              -                       -                          4,463               

SALES TAX PAYABLE -                     -                       -                       

FUND BALANCES:

NON-SPENDABLE  ( DEPOSITS & PREPAID) 240                 -                       -                          240                  

RESTRICTED FOR:

DEBT SERVICE -                     420,509           65,736                486,245           

TWO MONTHS OPERATING  CAPITAL 136,510         -                       -                          136,510           

ASSIGNED:

   FY 2015 & 2016 RESERVE 95,700            -                       -                          95,700             

   FY 2017 RESERVE 49,300            -                       -                          49,300             

FY 2018 RESERVE 50,300            -                       -                          50,300             

FY 2019 RESERVE 51,300            -                       -                          51,300             

FY 2020 RESERVE 52,300            -                       -                          52,300             

DECREASE IN RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT RESERVES (40,839)          -                       -                          (40,839)            

UNASSIGNED: 45,359            -                       -                          45,359             

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 1,240,137$    978,925$         141,884$            2,360,946$      

Anthem Park CDD

Balance Sheet

October 31, 2019



FY2020 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL (Net) 787,000$           -$                           -$                           -$                               

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL EXCESS FEES -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

INTEREST 2,000                 -                                 328                            328                             

CLUBHOUSE RENTAL 4,000                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

ACCESS CARDS -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

AMOUNTS ALLOCATED FROM RESERVES FOR  IMPROVEMENTS 26,060               5,650                         5,650                         -                                 

TOTAL REVENUE 819,060             5,650                         5,978                         328                             

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION:

SUPERVISORS' COMPENSATION 12,000               1,000                         800                            200                             

PAYROLL TAXES 918                    77                              61                              15                              

PAYROLL SERVICE FEE 700                    75                              49                              26                              

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 21,672               1,806                         1,806                         -                                 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 5,418                 452                            452                            -                                 

GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,204                 434                            408                            26                              

WEBSITE HOSTING & MANAGEMENT 2,265                 500                            500                            -                                 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 16,254               1,355                         1,355                         -                                 

AUDITING SERVICES 3,700                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

LEGAL ADVERTISING 1,250                 104                            -                                 104                             

MISCELLANEOUS (BANK FEES, BROCHURES & MISC) 500                    42                              -                                 42                              

REGULATORY & PERMIT FEE 175                    175                            175                            -                                 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 3,000                 250                            -                                 250                             

LEGAL SERVICES  15,000               1,250                         -                                 1,250                          

TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 88,056               7,518                         5,605                         1,913                          

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE

INSURANCE:

INSURANCE (Liability, Property and Casualty)                                     16,944               16,944                       17,426                       (482)                           

TOTAL INSURANCE 16,944               16,944                       17,426                       (482)                           

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION:

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION 8,663                 8,663                         8,663                         -                                 

COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES 300                    -                                 -                                 -                                 

TOTAL ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION 8,963                 8,663                         8,663                         -                                 

DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION:

     DISSIMINATION AGENT 5,000                 5,000                         5,000                         -                                 

ARBITRAGE REBATE CALCULATION 650                    -                                 -                                 -                                 

TRUSTEE FEES 3,772                 3,772                         3,771                         1                                

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION 9,422                 8,772                         8,771                         1                                

TOTAL FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE 35,329               34,379                       34,860                       (481)                           

UTILITIES:

ELECTRICITY SERVICES 27,000               2,250                         -                                 2,250                          

STREETLIGHTS - UTILITY 174,000             14,500                       -                                 14,500                        

WATER - RECLAIMED 26,900               2,242                         -                                 2,242                          

WATER UTILITY 8,100                 675                            -                                 675                             

TOTAL UTILITIES 236,000             19,667                       -                                 19,667                        

SECURITY:

SECURITY SYSTEM - CONTRACT - ENVERA 5,556                 1,389                         -                                 1,389                          

SECURITY SYSTEM - MONITORING - GUARDIAN 456                    38                              44                              (6)                               

SECURITY  - OTHER (ACCESS CARDS, REPAIRS) 500                    42                              -                                 42                              

SECURITY  - PROTECTION ONE - BASKETBALL COURT 948                    158                            158                            0                                

SECURITY  - GUARD/POLICE PATROL 14,400               1,200                         768                            432                             

TOTAL SECURITY 21,860               2,827                         970                            1,856                          

FIELD OFFICE ADMINISTRATION:

AMENITY MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 105,561             8,797                         7,673                         1,124                          

AMENITY MANAGEMENT - CLUBHOUSE RENTALS 3,771                 314                            235                            80                              

AMENITY MANAGEMENT - REIMBURSEMENTS -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

CLUBHOUSE TELEPHONE, FAX, INTERNET & CABLE 4,500                 375                            488                            (113)                           

CLUBHOUSE OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,700                 142                            126                            16                              

CLUBHOUSE FACILITY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,500                 125                            174                            (49)                             

PEST CONTROL & TERMITE BOND 580                    145                            -                                 145                             

MISCELLANEOUS 400                    33                              231                            (197)                           

CLUBHOUSE FACILITY MAINTENANCE 5,000                 417                            68                              348                             

CLUBHOUSE LIGHTING REPLACEMENT 500                    42                              -                                 42                              

ANTHEM PARK CDD

General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

PRELIMINARY

For the period from October 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019



FY2020 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

ANTHEM PARK CDD

General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

PRELIMINARY

For the period from October 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019

TOTAL FIELD OFFICE ADMINISTRATION          123,512             10,389                       8,994                         1,396                          

LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE:

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT 160,428             13,369                       12,732                       637                             

LANDSCAPE REPLACEMENT 5,000                 417                            -                                 417                             

TREE TRIMMING 1,000                 83                              -                                 83                              

IRRIGATION - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 10,000               833                            409                            424                             

LANDSCAPE MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

TOTAL LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE 176,428             14,702                       13,141                       1,561                          

FACILITY MAINTENANCE:

LAKE MANAGEMENT 4,200                 350                            349                            1                                

WETLAND MONITORING 1,440                 360                            360                            -                                 

FOUNTAIN SERVICE CONTRACT -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

FOUNTAIN REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 1,000                 83                              200                            (117)                           

GATE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 1,000                 83                              -                                 83                              

ENTRY & WALLS MAINTENANCE 1,000                 83                              -                                 83                              

DECORATIVE LIGHT MAINTENANCE 1,500                 750                            -                                 750                             

POWERWASH 750                    63                              17                              45                              

POOL SERVICE CONTRACT 15,300               1,150                         1,150                         -                                 

POOL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 2,500                 208                            -                                 208                             

POOL MONITORING -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

POOL PERMIT 325                    -                                 -                                 -                                 

ATHLETIC FACILITIES  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 2,500                 208                            -                                 208                             

MISCELLANEOUS - CONTINGENCY - EXPENSE 3,000                 250                            -                                 250                             

TOTAL FACILITY MAINTENANCE          34,515               3,589                         2,076                         1,513                          

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM:

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 25,000               8,400                         8,400                         -                                 

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 25,000               8,400                         8,400                         -                                 

RESERVES

INCREASE IN RESERVES FY 2020 52,300               -                                 -                                 -                                 

INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

DECREASE RESERVE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 26,060               5,650                         5,650                         -                                 

TOTAL RESERVES 78,360               5,650                         5,650                         -                                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 819,060             107,121                     79,697                       27,425                        

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                         (101,471)                    (73,719)                      27,753                        

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 457,964             457,964                     519,539                     519,539                      

INCREASE IN RESERVES FY 2019 52,300               -                                 -                                 -                                 

DECREASE IN RESERVE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS -                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

LESS: FUND BALANCE FORWARD (26,060)              (5,650)                        (5,650)                        (5,650)                        

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 484,204$           350,843$                    440,170$                    513,889$                    

FY 2015 - Tennis Courts, Surface Replacement 21,462$             

FY 2016 - Split System 6,204                 

Reserve Study Update                   1,800 

FY 2017 - Furniture 4,623                 

Pool Finish 44,571               

Concrete Sidewalks, Partial 23,092               

FY 2018 - Ponds, Fountains 10,824               

Total Replacement Expenditures from Reserves 112,576$           

Note: Reserve decrease in total of $35,189 is due to roofing for $25,000, $5,989 for furniture & $4,200 in AC replacement.

Reserve Expenditure Components



FY2020 VARIANCE

 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL (Gross) 593,750$              -$                             -$                             -$                                

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL EXCESS FEES -                           -                              -                              -                                  

INTEREST--INVESTMENT                                          -                            -                               578                          578                              

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE -                            -                               -                               -                                  

LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (23,750)                 -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL REVENUE 570,000                -                               578                          578                              

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES                                       11,875                  -                               -                               -                                  

INTEREST EXPENSE (NOV 2019) -                            -                               -                               -                                  

INTEREST EXPENSE (MAY & NOV 2020) 225,906                -                               -                               -                                  

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT (MAY 2020) 325,000                -                               -                               -                                  

COST OF ISSUANCE -                            -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 562,781                -                               -                               -                                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TRANSFER-IN -                            -                               -                               -                                  

TRANSFER-OUT -                            -                               -                               -                                  

BOND PROCEEDS -                            -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                            -                               -                               -                                  

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 7,219                    -                               578                          578                              

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            -                               419,931                   419,931                       

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 7,219$                  -$                             420,509$                 420,509$                     

ANTHEM PARK CDD

DEBT SERVICE 2016 A1

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

For the period from October 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019



FY2020 VARIANCE

 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL (Gross) 81,726$                 -$                             -$                             -$                                

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL EXCESS FEES -                             -                               -                               -                                  

INTEREST--INVESTMENT                                          -                             -                               55                            55                                

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE -                             -                               -                               -                                  

LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (3,269)                    -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL REVENUE 78,457                   -                               55                            55                                

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES                                       1,635                     -                               -                               -                                  

INTEREST EXPENSE (NOV 2019) -                             -                               -                               -                                  

INTEREST EXPENSE (MAY & NOV 2020) 39,169                   -                               -                               -                                  

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT (MAY 2020) 35,000                   -                               -                               -                                  

MANDATORY REDEMPTION -                             -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,804                   -                               -                               -                                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TRANSFER-IN -                             -                               -                               -                                  

TRANSFER-OUT -                             -                               -                               -                                  

BOND PROCEEDS -                             -                               -                               -                                  

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                             -                               -                               -                                  

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,653                     -                               55                            55                                

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                             -                               65,681                     65,681                         

FUND BALANCE FORWARD -                             -                               -                               -                                  

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 2,653$                   -$                             65,736$                   65,736$                       

ANTHEM PARK CDD

DEBT SERVICE 2016 A2

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

For the period from October 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019



BANK UNITED

Balance Per Bank Statement 31,241.04$         

Less: Outstanding Checks (13,439.85)          

Adjusted Bank Balance 17,801.19$         

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books 67,346.40$         

Cash Receipts & Credits 50,004.77           

Cash Disbursements (99,549.98)          

Balance Per Books 17,801.19$         

ANTHEM PARK  
Community Development District

Operating Accounts Reconciliations
October 31, 2019



DATE CHECK NO. PAYEE DEPOSIT PAYMENT

BANK 

UNITED 

BALANCE

09/30/2019 67,346.40

10/01/2019 9063 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD/Mgmt -  October 4,020.00 63,326.40

10/07/2019 2042 EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS, LLC Insurance - FY 2020 17,426.00 45,900.40

10/07/2019 2043 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNIT Annual Filing Fee 175.00 45,725.40

10/09/2019 2044 EXERCISE SYSTEMS, INC Gym Equipment 2,989.00 42,736.40

10/09/2019 2045 In Phaze Electric Inc. Install weather resistant outlets, permit fee 2,520.00 40,216.40

10/09/2019 2046 Scott Teeds Concrete Inc Remove stups compact and lay pavers pool area 5,250.00 34,966.40

10/09/2019 2047 Scott Teeds Concrete Inc Grind, Spots cut, repour, replace sidewalk sections 5,650.00 29,316.40

10/10/2019 9064 Icon Security Services 5/30-6/16 - Security 768.00 28,548.40

10/10/2019 9065 ORLANDO SENTINEL Legal Ads 267.50 28,280.90

10/10/2019 9066 PRO-PET DISTRIBUTORS Pet Waste Bags 220.90 28,060.00

10/10/2019 9067 Solitude Lake Management Lake & Pond Mgmt Svc - October, Fountain Maint Svs - 10/1-12/31 549.00 27,511.00

10/10/2019 9068 VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC. Amenity Mgmt - October 7,672.52 19,838.48

10/12/2019 ACH101219 BRIGHT HOUSE 9/25-10/24 - Internet - Court 124.30 19,714.18

10/15/2019 2048 US Bank Trustee Fees 3,771.25 15,942.93

10/15/2019 Bank United Funds Transfer 50,000.00 65,942.93

10/17/2019 ACH101719.1 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/28-9/27 - 2090 Continental St E1 265.84 65,677.09

10/17/2019 ACH101719.2 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/28-9/27 - 1800 Remembrance Rd 14.03 65,663.06

10/17/2019 ACH101719.3 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/18-9/27 - 2090 Continental St -Court/Fntn 780.96 64,882.10

10/17/2019 ACH101719.4 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/28-9/27 - 2090 Continental St Chse 650.94 64,231.16

10/17/2019 ACH101719.5 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION Streetlights - Sept 14,452.34 49,778.82

10/17/2019 ACH101719.6 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/28-9/27 - 2100 Block Continental ST LS80 449.44 49,329.38

10/17/2019 ACH101719.7 ORLANDO UTILITIES COMMISSION 8/28-9/27 - 2100 Blk Even Kissimmee Park Rd 16.84 49,312.54

10/18/2019 ACH101819 BRIGHT HOUSE 10/1-10/31 - Cable/Internet 264.65 49,047.89

10/18/2019 9070 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC Special Assessment - FY 2020, Continuing Disclosure & ADA Compliance 14,163.00 34,884.89

10/18/2019 9071 GARGANESE WEISS & D'AGRESTA Legal Svcs - September 610.50 34,274.39

10/18/2019 9072 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - October 12,731.75 21,542.64

10/18/2019 692263 BLAIR POSSENRIEDE BOS Mtg - 10/11/19 184.70 21,357.94

10/18/2019 10 GERALD HARRINGTON BOS Mtg - 10/11/19 184.70 21,173.24

10/18/2019 ACH101819.2 Innovative Employer Solutions BOS Mtg - 10/11/19 171.40 21,001.84

10/18/2019 11 John Ortega BOS Mtg - 10/11/19 184.70 20,817.14

10/18/2019 692264 KENNETH WILLIAMS BOS Mtg - 10/11/19 184.70 20,632.44

10/18/2019 2049 MARIA AGOSTA Party Closures (7) August & September 328.65 20,303.79

10/21/2019 2050 FLORIDA DEPT OF REVENUE 3rd Qtr. 2019 Sales Tax 115.15 20,188.64

10/24/2019 9073 BLUESCAPE POOLS & SPAS Pool Maint - Oct 1,150.00 19,038.64

10/24/2019 9074 GUARDIAN PROTECTION SERVICES, INC 10/7-11/6 - Monitoring 37.07 19,001.57

10/30/2019 ACH103019.1 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - 2090 Continental St E1 382.23 18,619.34

10/30/2019 ACH103019.2 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Entrance and Capital 36.17 18,583.17

10/30/2019 ACH103019.3 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Congress and Capital 36.80 18,546.37

10/30/2019 ACH103019.4 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Continental and Congress 26.72 18,519.65

10/30/2019 ACH103019.5 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - 2100 Block Continental St LS80 13.79 18,505.86

10/30/2019 ACH103019.6 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - 1800 Betsy Ross Lane 83.56 18,422.30

10/30/2019 ACH103019.7 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - 2100 Block Odd Betsy Ross Lane 83.56 18,338.74

10/30/2019 ACH103019.8 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Valley Forge & Nathan Hall 83.56 18,255.18

10/30/2019 ACH103019.9 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Blount Trail & Ft. Mchenry 83.56 18,171.62

10/30/2019 ACH10301910 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Lexington Entrance 94.90 18,076.72

10/30/2019 ACH10301911 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - Patriot Way and Senate 2 98.68 17,978.04

10/30/2019 ACH10301912 CITY OF ST CLOUD 8/27-9/27 - 1800 Block Odd Remembrance Ave 181.62 17,796.42

10/31/2019 Bank United Interest 4.77 17,801.19

10/31/2019 50,004.77 99,549.98 17,801.19EOM Balance

ANTHEM PARK CDD

CHECK REGISTER

FY2020



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



 

  1

AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN THE ANTHEM PARK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE, 
INC. ________________________________________ 

  
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of November, 
2019, by and between: 
 

ANTHEM PARK  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated in 
Osceola County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 250 International Parkway, Suite 
280, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (the “District”); and 
 
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE, INC., a corporation authorized to do business in the State of 
Florida, whose address is 30319 Commerce Drive, San Antonio, Florida 33576 
(“Contractor” and, together with the District, the “Parties”).   

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance of the County Commission of 
Osceola County, Florida, for the purpose of financing, funding, planning, establishing, acquiring, 
constructing or reconstructing, enlarging or extending, equipping, operating, and maintaining 
systems and facilities for certain infrastructure improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide landscape 
and irrigation maintenance services for certain lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is qualified to serve as a landscape and irrigation 
maintenance contractor and provide such services to the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, 
it is agreed that the Contractor is hereby retained, authorized, and instructed by the District to 
perform in accordance with the following covenants and conditions, which both the District and 
the Contractor have agreed upon: 
 
 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and correct and 
by this reference are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 2.   DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 
 
  A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional landscape 

maintenance services within presently accepted standards and as outlined in 
Sections 3 and 4 of this Agreement.   

 
  B. While providing the services identified in this Agreement, the Contractor 

shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff shall be responsible 
for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure 
completion of the services. 

 



 

  2

  C. The Contractor shall provide the specific professional services as per 
Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. 

           
 3. SCOPE OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The duties, 
obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor are in the Standard Services Scope of Work 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, and  are as described in this 
Agreement (“Services”). Such services shall be performed in the areas designated on Exhibit B.  
Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its duties, 
obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. The Contractor may 
perform additional services upon the written request of the District’s Manager consistent with 
Paragraph 5(C) of this Agreement. 
     
 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as an 
independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such Services as specified in this 
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by 
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor.  All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards.  The performance of all Services by the Contractor 
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions 
issued by the District. 
 
  A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this 

Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the 
proper provision of services to the District, such work or services shall be 
fully performed by the Contractor as if described and delineated in this 
Agreement, subject to the provisions of paragraph 5(C), below. 

 
  B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of 

any work or services unless the District, through an authorized 
representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to 
perform such work. 

 
C. The District Manager shall act as the District’s representative with respect 

to the Services to be performed under this Agreement.  The District’s 
representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, 
receive information, interpret and define the District’s policies and 
decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems 
pertinent to the Contractor’s Services. 

 
 
Contractor shall designate a competent, authorized representative (the 
“Authorized Representative”) acceptable to District to represent and act for 
Contractor and shall inform District, in writing, of the name and address of 
such representative together with a clear definition of the scope of their 
authority to represent and act for Contractor and shall specify any and all 
limitations of such authority.  Contractor shall keep District informed of any 
subsequent changes in the foregoing. The Authorized Representative, 
project managers, superintendents and/or supervisors for Services provided 



 

  3

herein are all subject to prior and continuous approval of the District.  If, at 
any time during the term of this Agreement, any of the personnel either 
functionally or nominally performing any of the positions named above, are, 
for any reason whatsoever, reasonably unacceptable to the District, 
Contractor shall replace the unacceptable personnel with personnel 
reasonably acceptable to the District. 

 
The Contractor agrees that the Authorized Representative will meet with 
the District’s representative on a monthly basis to walk the property to 
discuss conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this 
Agreement.  In addition to any and all specific items addressed during such 
meetings, the Monthly Landscape Maintenance Gradesheet, attached hereto 
as Exhibit C and incorporated herein, shall be completed and executed by 
both the Authorized Representative and District’s Representative at the 
conclusion of such meeting.  The District may withhold payment in whole 
or in part to the extent necessary to reasonably protect the District, if 
significant performance deficiencies are documented per executed 
Gradesheet(s). 

 
  D. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains or inclement weather (“Rain 

Days”), the Contractor agrees to reschedule its employees and divide their 
time accordingly to complete all scheduled Services during the same week 
as any Rain Days.  The Contractor shall provide Services on Saturdays if 
needed to make up Rain Days, but shall not provide Services on Sundays. 

 
E. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its 

residents, and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any 
damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four 
(24) hours, unless the work required to repair the damage will exceed 
twenty-four (24) hours. Any damage requiring more than twenty-four (24) 
hours to repair must be approved by the District in writing.   Such repairs 
shall be at the Contractor’s own expense unless the District agrees 
otherwise, in writing. 

 
 5. COMPENSATION; TERM.   
 
  A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District 

agrees to pay the Contractor an amount of not to exceed Thirteen Thousand 
Three Hundred Sixty-Nine dollars ($13,369) per month for a total fee not to 
exceed One  Hundred Sixty Thousand Four Hundred Twenty-Eight Dollars 
($160,428.00)  for the period of the Contractor’s Services, which shall 
commence on December 1, 2019, and shall continue through December 09, 
2020, unless terminated earlier in accordance with Paragraph 13, below.   

 
 B. All prior agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter 

of this Agreement are terminated upon the execution of this Agreement. 
 



 

  4

 C. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional 
lands to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 
undertake such additional work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, 
the Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, or change order 
to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed 
additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the 
Parties and agreed to in writing. No additional services shall be provided by 
the Contractor unless done at the direction of the District.   

   
D. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment 

to the Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers 
be paid and require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial 
Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those subcontractors, 
material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor 
provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, 
the District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to 
making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory 
to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to Services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations 
with regard to the  withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security 
payments, Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment Compensation 
contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
 E. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting 

practices.  Further, the Contractor agrees to render monthly invoices to the 
District, in writing and in an ADA web accessible format, which shall be 
delivered or mailed to the District by the fifth (5th) day of the next 
succeeding month.  These monthly invoices are due and payable within 
thirty (30) days of receipt by the District.  Each monthly invoice will include 
such supporting information as the District may reasonably require the 
Contractor to provide.   

 
 6. INSURANCE. 
 
  A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the 

following insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida. 

  
   (2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s 

legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 (one million dollars) combined single limit bodily injury 
and property damage liability, and including, at a minimum, 
Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property 
damage in connection with subcontractors’ operation. 

     



 

  5

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 
(one million dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
   (4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not 

less than $1,000,000 (one million dollars) combined single limit  
bodily injury and for property damage, providing coverage for any 
accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, 
or use by the Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired 
automobiles, trailers, or other equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as 

additional insureds. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No 
certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any 
change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverages, 
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written 
notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and 
such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 

 
C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required 

insurance, the District has the right (without any obligation to do so, 
however), to secure such required insurance in which event, the Contractor 
shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon 
demand, all information that may be required in connection with the 
District’s obtaining the required insurance. 

 
 7. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 

A. Obligations under this paragraph shall include the payment of third-party 
settlements, judgments, damages, penalties, forfeitures, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and 
paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings) as ordered. 

 
B. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and 

its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, 
suits or demands by any third party for injuries, death, property damage or 
damages of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the work to be 
performed by Contractor under this Agreement, including litigation or any 
appellate proceedings with respect thereto. Contractor further agrees that 
nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute or be construed as a 
waiver of the District's limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, or other law. Any subcontractor retained by the Contractor 
shall acknowledge in writing such subcontractor’s acceptance of the terms 
of this Section 7. 

  



 

  6

 8. WARRANTY AND COVENANT. The Contractor warrants to the District that all 
materials furnished under this Agreement shall be new, and that all services and materials shall be 
of good quality, free from faults and defects.  The Contractor hereby warrants any materials and 
Services for a period of one (1) year after acceptance by the District or longer as required under 
Florida law.  With respect to any and all plant material provided pursuant to Section 2, all plant 
material shall be guaranteed to be in a satisfactory growing condition and to live for a period of 
one (1) year from planting except for annuals, which will be replaced seasonally. All plants that 
fail to survive under the guarantee shall be replaced as they fail with the same type and size as 
originally specified.  Contractor further warrants to the District those warranties which Contractor 
otherwise warrants to others and the duration of such warranties is as provided by Florida law 
unless longer guarantees or warranties are provided for elsewhere in the Agreement (in which case 
the longer periods of time shall prevail).  Contractor shall replace or repair warranted items to the 
District’s satisfaction and in the District’s discretion.  Neither final acceptance of the Services, nor 
monthly or final payment therefore, nor any provision of the Agreement shall relieve Contractor 
of responsibility for defective or deficient materials or Services.  If any of the Services or materials 
are found to be defective, deficient or not in accordance with the Agreement, Contractor shall 
correct, remove and replace it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the District and 
correct and pay for any other damage resulting therefrom to District property or the property of 
landowners within the District. Contractor hereby certifies it is receiving the property in its as-is 
condition and has thoroughly inspected the property and addressed any present deficiencies, if any, 
with the District. Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining and warranting all plant material 
maintained by Contractor as of the first date of the Services.  

 
Contractor hereby covenants to the District that it shall perform the Services: (i) using its 

best skill and judgment and in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and (ii) 
in compliance with all applicable federal, state, county, municipal, building and zoning, land use, 
environmental, public safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, codes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, all professional registration (both 
corporate and individual) for all required basic disciplines that it shall perform.  Contractor hereby 
covenants to the District that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use nor 
infringe any patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietary interest claimed or 
held by any person or business entity absent prior written consent from the District. 

 
9. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall keep, 

observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the Services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of Services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 14 
and such termination is to be effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 



 

  7

10. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all labor 
employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement.  The 
Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and 
claims or notices with respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of the Contractor’s 
performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim 
or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) 
business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies 
available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 
14 and such termination is to be effective immediately upon the giving notice of termination. 

 
11. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A default 

by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in 
equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 
 
 12. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the contrary 
notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions and 
agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 13. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, except 
as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 14. TERMINATION.  The Contractor may terminate this Agreement with or without 
cause by providing sixty (60) days written notice of termination to the District; provided, however, 
that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately with cause by providing 
written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District may terminate this Agreement without 
cause upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or Services rendered up until the 
effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may 
have against the Contractor.   
 
 15. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any governmental 
agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All other permits or 
licenses necessary for the contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be obtained and paid 
for by the Contractor. 
 
 
 



 

  8

 16. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other, provided, however, that consent shall not be 
required to assign this Agreement to any company which controls, is controlled by, or is under 
common control with Contractor or in connection with assignment to an affiliate or pursuant to a 
merger, sale of all or substantially all of its assets or equity securities, consolidation, change of 
control or corporate reorganization.  Any purported assignment without such prior written approval 
shall be void. 
 
 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor nor employees 
of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or application 
of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or otherwise.  The 
Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more of such laws 
with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or implied, 
on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District as an 
agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this Agreement 
are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of 
the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 19. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or the 
Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 20. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 
this Agreement between the District and the Contractor relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
 21. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by written instrument  executed by both the District and the 
Contractor. 
 
 22. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the 
Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the Contractor 
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 
 
 23. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
   
 
 
 
 



 

  9

   
A. If to the District:  Anthem Park Community Development  

District 
250 International Parkway, Suite 280 
Lake Mary , Florida 32746 

       Attn:  District Manager 
 
   With a copy to:  Garganese, Weiss, D’Agresta & Salzman 
       111 N. Orange Ave., Suite 2000 
       Orlando , FL  32802    
                 Attn: Neysa Borkett, District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  Yellowstone Landscape, Inc. 
     1773 Business Center Lane 

Kissimmee, FL 34758 
     Attn: Rob Stultz, Branch Manager 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other party and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 
 24. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for 
the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 25. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of 
Florida.  Venue for any dispute arising hereunder shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in 
Osceola County, Florida. 
 
 26. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of any 
kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including but not limited to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Patricia Comings-



 

  10

Thibault (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable 
by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform 
the Services; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the 
requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time 
period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as 
otherwise provided by law; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and 
exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law 
for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not 
transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the 
contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, 
alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records 
pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided 
to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 
 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS AT (321) 263-0132, patricia.comings-thibault@dpfg.com, OR  250 
INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 280, LAKE  MARY, FLORIDA 
32746.   

 
 27. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 28. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the District and the Contractor as an arm's length transaction.  The District and the 
Contractor participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their 
respective counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, each party is deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any 
doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 
 
 29. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts 
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 

30. TAXES. The District is exempt from Florida Sales and Use Tax and shall furnish 
Contractor with proof of tax exempt status upon request. 
 
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 
 





 

  12

 
 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT A: Standard Services Scope of Work 



Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal
prepared for

Anthem Park CDD
October 01, 2019



Page 1Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



October 01, 2019

Patricia Thibault
Senior District Manager
DPFG
250 International Parkway, Suite 280
Lake Mary, Florida 32746

Re: Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal for Anthem Park CDD

Thank you for considering a partnership with Yellowstone Landscape as your landscape maintenance service provider.
Our proposal has been created to address the specific needs and expectations you have expressed for Anthem Park
CDD. We call this your Plan for Success because our integrated service plan has been designed to give you a landscape
that you can be proud of.

Within your Plan for Success please make special note of the following sections:

• Scope of Services Summary: This section outlines our proposed scope of services, detailing the Best Practices
we’ve developed to provide a consistent appearance across your landscape.

• About Us: Information about our company’s qualifications, capabilities and values.

• References: A selected listing of clients with landscape service needs similar in scope to yours. Please reach out
to them with any questions you have about working with us.

• Agreement & Your Investment: Our service agreement and pricing for the services we’ll provide to your property.

If you have any questions after reviewing our proposal, please contact me at any time. I welcome the opportunity to
provide you any further details about our firm’s commitment to delivering a landscape that you will be proud of.

Sincerely,
Mike Gaddis, Business Development Manager
Yellowstone Landscape
407.340.0117
mgaddis@yellowstonelandscape.com

Page 2Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 3Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 4Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 5Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 6Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 7Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 8Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 9Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 10Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 11Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 12Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 13Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 14Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 15Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 16Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 17Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 18Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 19Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 20Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 21Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 22Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 23Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 24Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 25Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 26Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 27Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 28Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 29Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 30Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 31Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 32Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 33Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 34Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 35Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 36Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 37Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 38Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 39Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 40Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Yellowstone Landscape began in 2008 with the
unification of established, independently successful
regional landscape companies. For more than a
decade since, we’ve been linked by a common goal
to better serve our clients, sharing our experience in
landscape maintenance, landscape installation,
landscape enhancement, and tree care services.

Yellowstone Landscape has become one of the
industry’s fastest growing and most trusted
commercial landscaping companies, proudly serving
more than 3000 clients from local operating facilities
across the South and Southwest.

Yellowstone Landscape is dedicated to creating and
maintaining green spaces that enhance the quality
of life where you live, work, and play. We provide
professional landscaping services to some of the
most outstanding homeowner associations,local
governments, master planned developments,
resorts, corporate campuses, commercial office
parks, schools, hospitals, apartment communities
and retail centers in the South and Southwest
United States.

Quick Facts About Yellowstone Landscape:
• More than 30 Local Operating Branches Across

the South and Southwestern United States

• Over 2500 Full-Time Employees & 800
Seasonal and Part-Time Associates

• More than 1000 Vehicles in Our Service Fleet

• Established Executive Leadership and Local
Operations Management Teams

• Safety Program Recognized as Among the
Most Proactive in the Landscape Industry

• 93% Client Satisfaction Rating in our most
recent annual client survey

• 29 National Landscape Awards of Excellence
received since 2008

• Ranked #5 in the 2019 Top 100 Largest Lawn
& Landscape Companies in North America

• More than 1,000,000 trees planted along
public roadways in the last decade

ABOUT US



Page 42Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 43Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 44Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 45Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 46Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 47Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 48Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 49Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD













Page 55Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 57Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 58Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 59Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 61Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 63Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 64Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 65Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 66Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 67Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



Page 68Yellowstone Landscape | Anthem Park CDD



FUNCTION FREQUENCY 
(PER YEAR) 

UNIT PRICE 
FIRST YEAR 

GRANDTOTAL 

A. St. Augustine Turf Mow 42   
B. Bahia Turf Mow (revised from 42 

to 36)  
36   

C. Eagle Protection Zone 24   

D. Edge (Soft) 24   

E. Edge (Hard) 42   
F. Shrub/Groundcover Trim – 

Monthly Detail of Entire Campus 
12   

G. Special Detail of High Visibility 
Areas – Main Entrances, Amenity 
& Pool Area- Trimming 2x 
monthly, weed and trash control 
weekly 

24 Trimmings 
52 Events for 
Weed & Trash 

Control  

  

H. Tree Maintenance (15 feet – list 
quantity) & Crepe clearance on 
Lights on Capital 

1   

I. Palm Pruning (list quantity) 1   
J. Insect/Disease Control (ongoing – 

spot treat as needed – no blanket) 
42   

K. Irrigation Inspection and 
Management (1 visit per month – 
entire campus)  

12   

L. Shrub Fertilization/Chemical – 
Insect/Disease Control as Needed 

2   

M. St. Augustine Turf 
Fertilization/Chemical (Includes 
blanket preventative for chinch) 

6   

N. Bahia Turf Fertilization/Chemical – 
Cannot fertilize as near pondbanks

0   

O. Turf  Weed Control & Spot as 
Needed 

42   

P. Bed Weed Control 42   

Q. Annuals – 150 Per Rotation 4   

R. Mulch Per CY – 200 Yards 2   
S. Garbage Removal – 1 x per week – 

10 trash receptacles –provide unit 
pricing as well as extended 

52   

T. Palm Fertilization Per Tree – 
provide unit pricing 

As Needed   

U. Sod Replacement – provide unit 
pricing 

As Needed   

rgaddis
Line

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$514.11

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,054.14

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$774.69

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$395.68

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$226.10

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,419.28

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$319.88

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$5,677.12

rgaddis
Typewritten text
N/A

rgaddis
Typewritten text
N/A

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$10.14

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$473.09

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$5,677.12

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$425.78

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$5,677.12

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$7,677.12

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$17,031.36

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$9,496.28

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$9,496.28

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$18,592.57

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$37,949.14

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$21,592.57

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,064.46

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$709.64

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$0

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$10.14

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$30.14

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$225.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
1

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$8,800.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$68.23

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$15.00/palm

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1.50/sqft

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$3,548.20

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$8,800.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$900.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,277.35

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$425.78

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$0

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$4,257.84

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$2,128.92



V. Tree Fertilization Per Tree – 
provide unit pricing 

As Needed   

W. Irrigation Labor per Emergency 
Response – provide unit pricing 

As Needed   

X. Extra Mowing to Maintain 3 ½ to 
4” height 

As Needed   

Y. Volleyball Court Rake- provide 
estimated as needed requirements 
for contract 

_______   

Z. Leaf Removal – provide estimated 
as needed requirements for contract

_______   

AA. Garbage Trash Liners – 2 x per 
week – 10 trash receptacles – 
provide unit pricing as well as 
extended 

520   

 
Items for Contract Pricing will include Item A-S.  All other prices will be considered as needed 
and addressed by individual proposal unless deemed otherwise by the Board based on response. 
 
 
Contract Pricing Year One ______________________________ 
 
Contract Pricing Year Two ______________________________ 
 
Contract Pricing Year Three ______________________________ 
 
Contract Pricing Year Four ______________________________ 
 

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$15.00/tree

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$65.00/man hour

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$42.00/man hour

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$42.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,092.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$193.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$1,544.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
52

rgaddis
Typewritten text
8

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$5.46

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$2,838.56

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$160,428.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$160,428.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$165,240.00

rgaddis
Typewritten text
$168,552.00



Anthem Park 
Community Development District 

Rob Stultz 

Branch Manager, Orlando-South 

Fertilization and Spray 

Manager 

Doug Durling 

Virginia Alvarez 

Office Manager 

Irrigation Manager 

Mike Smith 

Account Manager 

Helena Obrist 

Landscape Designer 

Mow/Detail Crew 

(5 Summer/3 Winter) 
Irrigation Technicians Spray Technicians 

*****Total amount of field employees will fluctuate depending on the season; this is the staffing plan at the height of the growing season; supple-

mental crew members may be added to accommodate for extra workload if needed 



 

  14

Enclosure A, Schedule of Services, as applicable to each Agrement 
 
Business Partner shall ensure hiring, training   and   administration   of   motivated   and 
professional employees that meet or exceed both Business Partner and District's 
standards. Compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act (O.S.H.A.) All material, 
equipment, etc. to be used by the Business Partner in the performance of the Services shall 
conform to all OSHA requirements. The Business Partner shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the District for any failure by the Business Partner to comply with those 
requirements. 
 
Business Partner is responsible for the daily personal appearance of landscape 
personnel. Business Partner shall provide seasonal uniforms and weather-appropriate 
protective c lothing necessary to support continuous performance of contract 
requirements. Landscape personnel are prohibited from carrying weapons of any kind, 
including but not limited to: firearms, nightsticks, martial arts weapons or equipment, batons 
or any chemical agent spray or liquid. 
 
Business Partner shall agree to remove from the site, whenever required to d o  so by  
the District, any employee considered by District to be unsatisfactory or undesirable 
to the District, within t h e  limits of  any applicable laws. 
 
Business Partner shall administer all cost accounting and billing relative to this contract. 
 
Business Partner must have an emergency phone contact available twenty-four (24) hours 
per day for major irrigation repairs and leaks and the contact must speak and understand the 
English language fluently. Business Partner must be on-site within two (2) hours when 
notified of a major irrigation break as may be requested by the Anthem Park  CDD. 
 
Business Partner must attend every District meeting held on a monthly basis.  
 
Business Partner must provide priority emergency clean up services after named 
storms. 
 
Business Partner is responsible for providing a written report to the District within thirty 
days of start date of contract outlining any damage to the irrigation system. The District is 
responsible for any necessary repairs listed on the Business Partner's report. 
 
Business Partner is responsible for providing a written report to District within thirty (30) 
days of start date of contract outlining any dead turf and/or plant material (trees in excess of 
fifteen feet   height are excluded) present in the Areas to be Maintained. After day thirty (30), 
if the District has repaired the irrigation system as called for above, the Business Partner is 
responsible for   replacement of any additional dead turf and/or plant material in the Areas 
to be Maintained that is not caused by age, non-Business Partner vehicle damage, vandalism, 
or Acts of God. As District replaces dead turf/plant material from Business Partners report, 
Business Partner is   responsible for providing photos or video proof that dead plant material 
was dead or distressed at the start of the contract period. 



 

  15

Enclosure A, Schedule of Services, as applicable to each Agreement 
(continued) 

 
 
Business Partner shall assign an account manager to the property that shall be responsible 
for the on- site supervision of Business Partners personnel and services being rendered. 
 
The account manager shall communicate with the District Manager at least weekly 
and such communication shall include, but not limited to the following: 

1. Detailed weekly reports of work performed, and detailed and dated enumeration of 
problems encountered, during service performance, and recommendation for 
solution. 

2. Detailed monthly irrigation reports from irrigation inspection. 
3. Detailed and dated account of any materials or service incorporated into work   that   

will be billed for as an extra charge.   All extra work that incurs a cost must be 
approved in advance. 

4. Detailed and dated account of any materials or service incorporated into work that 
will be billed for as an extra charge. All extra work that incurs a cost must be 
approved in advance. 

5. All of   the above reports and accounts will be delivered to the Community District 
Manager along with the invoice for the prior month's services; invoice will not be 
processed for payment until reports are received. 



 

  16

EXHIBIT B: MAP OF SERVICE AREA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*Streets and sidewalks within the right-of way-dedicated to the City of St. Cloud shall be
maintained by the City of St. Cloud, excluding concrete band and/or brick pavers as noted below.

Prepared for the Anthem Park CDD

Anthem Park
Maintenance Map (As of April 2015) 

0'
200'100' NORTH400

CDD MAINTENANCE AREA

DEDICATED CDD STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AREA (MAINTAINED BY CDD)

HOA MAINTENANCE AREA

ALLEYWAY
(MAINTAINED BY CDD)

PRIVATELY MAINTAINED

6824 Hanging Moss Road
Orlando, Florida 32807
Office:  (407)494-2693
Certificate of Auth. 29791

PIER PARK

FUTURE PET PARK

EAGLE PROTECTION ZONE

FOUNTAIN PARK

CURRENT PET PARK (AS OF JANUARY 2015)
FUTURE SWING PARK

GAS EASEMENT

OLD CANOE CREEK ROAD

CONTINENTAL STREET

CA
PI

TA
L 

BL
VD

SENATE AVE

CONGRESS LN

JUSTICE LN

PATRIOT WAY

BANNER LN

NATIONS WAY

CONTINENTAL STREET

CO
N

TI
N

EN
TA

L 
ST

RE
ET

CONTINENTAL STREET CENTENNIAL AVE

SOLDIERS PASSKETTLE CREEK DR

N
AT

HA
N

 H
AL

E 
BL

VD

VALLEY FORGE DR

O
LD

 G
LO

RY
 W

AY

BETSY ROSS LN

LE
XI

N
GT

O
N

 B
LV

D

PATRIOT WAY

RUFUS KING DR

BLOUNT TRAILFO
RT

 M
CH

EN
RY

 B
LV

D

RE
M

EM
BR

AN
CE

 A
VE

REMEMBRANCE AVE

FLORIDA'S TURNPIKE

LE
XI

NG
TO

N 
BL

VD

BETSY ROSS LN

*Anthem Park CDD is responsible for maintenance, repair and/or replacement of any concrete
banding and/or brick pavers located within the pavement of any right of way dedicated to the City
of St. Cloud.

LIFT STATION
(OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY CITY OF ST. CLOUD)

COMMUNICATIONS BUILDING

*Utilities (water, sewer, reclaimed water) and storm system within the City of St. Cloud's right of
way shall be maintained by City of St. Cloud.

City of St. Cloud Phone No.:  (407) 957-7344

CDD MAINTENANCE AREA BEGINS 20' FROM BACK EDGE OF BUILDING

CDD MAINTENANCE AREA BEGINS 10' FROM BACK EDGE OF BUILDING

WETLAND CONSERVATION
(OWNED & MAINTAINED BY CDD)

OSCEOLA COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD PROPERTY

PATRIOT PARK

RECREATION CENTER (OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY CDD)

SAND VOLLEYBALL COURT, GAZEBO,
TENNIS/BASKETBALL COURTS

(OWNED & MAINTAINED BY CDD)

WETLAND (MAINTAINED BY CDD)

IN CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY, MAINTAINED BY CDD

*Landscape areas within the right-of-way dedicated to the City of St. Cloud (between sidewalk and
roadway) shall be mowed by the CDD.

HOA TRACT BEING CONVEYED TO CDD FOR CDD
MOWING AND MAINTANANCE

2,054,588.60 S.F.

264,465.08 S.F.

86,445.12 S.F.

EAGLE PROTECTION AREA 304,808.59 S.F.

Z
:
\
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
\
1
0
2
2
.
0
0
0
 
A
n
t
h
e
m
 
P
a
r
k
 
C
D
D
\
A
n
t
h
e
m
 
P
a
r
k
\
C
D
D
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
M
a
p
\
A
n
t
h
e
m
 
P
a
r
k
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
M
a
p
.
d
w
g
,
 
4
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
1
0
:
4
3
 
P
M
,
 
S
t
e
v
e
,

1
:
1



 

  17

EXHIBIT C: GRADE SHEET 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

  18

VISUAL GRADESHEET 
A. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE VALUE DEDUCTION REASON FOR DEDUCTION 

TURF MOW (grass height, patterns 
changed, free of grass clumps and 
landscape debris) 

5   

TURF FERTILITY (dead/browning grass, 
nutrient levels tested 2 x yearly, fertilizer 
streaking) 

15   

TURF EDGING (sidewalks, curbs, pathways, 
and other paved surfaces, no discharge, no 
irregular lines) 

5   

WEED CONTROL – TURF AREAS 
(reasonably free of weeds) 

10   

TURF INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL 
(monitor for pests, disease, fungus) 

10   

PLANT FERTILITY (dead/browning shrub, 
shrubbery shaping, rejuvenation pruning vs 
tabletop, yellowing) 

5   

WEED CONTROL – BED AREAS 
(reasonably free of weeds) 

10   

PLANT BED INSECT/DISEASE 
CONTROL (monitor for pests, disease, 
fungus) 

10   

PRUNING & TREE TRIMMING (15 feet 
over roadways, 8 feet sidewalks and 
elsewhere) 

10   

CLEANLINESS (debris free, leaf litter, 
landscape debris) 

10   

MULCHING (distributed appropriately, 
bare areas, recommended is 3”) 

5   

WATER/IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT 15   

PRIOR MAINTENACE ITEMS 
ADDRESSED 

5   

 

 



 

  19

B. SEASONAL COLOR/PERENNIAL 
MAINTENANCE 

VALUE DEDUCTION REASON FOR DEDUCTION 

VIGOR/APPEARANCE 10   

INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL 10   

DEADHEADING/PRUNING 10   

MAXIMUM VALUE 145   

 

Date     Score:  XX   

Contractor Signature:            

Inspector Signature:            

(Promote Consistent Maintenance – Landscape Failure at 86%. Deduction based on Quality of Maintenance) 

 

 
 

 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



 
Page 1 of 3 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENITY FACILITY MANAGEMENT, POOL MONITORING, 
GENERAL FACILITY MAINTENANCE, AND JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANTHEM PARK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC. FOR 
AMENITY FACILITY MANAGEMENT, POOL MONITORING, GENERAL FACILITY 
MAINTENANCE, AND JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES ("Second Amendment"), 
effective as of the ____ day of _______________, 2019 (“Effective Date”), is made and entered into by 
and between ANTHEM PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ("District"), and 
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC. (“Vesta”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, District and Vesta entered into that certain Amenity Facility Management, Pool 
Monitoring, General Facility Maintenance, And Janitorial Maintenance Services contract dated 
September 1, 2016 and that First Amendment to the Amenity Management Agreement dated                      
(collectively the "Amenity Management Agreement”) for Vesta to manage, staff, and/or maintain the 
District’s amenity center and to provide other services as described more particularly in the Amenity 
Management Agreement ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Anthem Park Community Development District Board of Supervisors and 

Vesta desire to modify the staffed hours of the Amenity Center facilities. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein set forth, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby expressly acknowledged, District 
and Vesta hereby covenant and agree as follows:  

 
1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, the capitalized terms used in this Second 

Amendment shall have the same meanings as are set forth in the Amenity Management Agreement, as 
amended. 

 
2. Amenity Center Staffed Hours. Section 4 of the Amenity Management Agreement is 

amended as follows, deletions being shown in strikethrough and additions shown in underline format: 
 

The staffed hours of the Amenity Center facilities are anticipated to be from:  
 Monday-Wednesday; 9:00 am - 12:00 pm 
 Thursday; 2:00 pm – 5:00 pm 
 Friday: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 

  Sunday and Monday: Closed 
Tuesday: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
Wednesday: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
Thursday: 10:00 am – 11:00 am (Available by appointment until 5) 
Friday: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
Saturday: 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 



 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 Notwithstanding Section 16 of this Agreement, Provided, however, that any deviation 
from such staffed hours shall must be approved by the District’s Board of Supervisors (the 
“Board”) or its authorized representative the District Manager and Vesta by written letter of 
agreement. 
  
3. Entire Agreement.  The Amenity Management Agreement and this Second Amendment 

set forth all covenants, promises, agreements, conditions and understandings between District and Vesta 
concerning the Amenity Management Agreement and there are no other covenants, promises, 
agreements, conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between them other than those which 
are set forth therein.  Except as otherwise provided herein, no subsequent alterations, changes or 
additions to the Amenity Management Agreement, First Amendment or this Second Amendment shall 
be binding upon District or Vesta, unless reduced to writing and fully executed by both District and 
Vesta. 

 
4. Counterparts.  This Second Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and both of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 
5. Force and Effect.  Except as modified herein, all terms and conditions of the Amenity 

Management Agreement are hereby ratified and acknowledged to be unchanged and are, and shall 
remain, in full force and effect, and Vesta and District waive any defects in the execution of the Amenity 
Management Agreement as amended.  In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of 
the Amenity Management Agreement, the First Amendment and the terms and conditions of the Second 
Amendment, the Second Amendment shall govern and control.  

 
6. Successors.  The provisions of this Second Amendment shall be binding upon, and shall 

inure to the benefit of, each of the parties hereto and to their respective successors, transferees and 
assigns. 

 
7. Legal Advice.  Each of the parties hereto has been advised of its right to the advice of 

independent counsel of its own choosing, and acknowledges that it has either exercised or hereby waives 
that right. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment to Amenity 

Management Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 
 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW] 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement the day and year first written 
above. 

 
 

Attest: ANTHEM PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  

 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
      VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  By:  ________________________________ 
Witness     Print: _______________________________ 
      Its:   _______________________________  
       
_____________________________ 
Print Name of Witness 
 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



Lee Masonry 
 

6985 Hammock Trace Drive 

Melbourne, Florida 32940 

321-243-2196 

leemasonryrepair@gmail.com 

 

Work Order Proposal 
 

 

Bill To:        Ship To: 
Anthem Park CDD           Same        

2090 Continental Street    

St. Cloud, Florida 32969      

407-556-2202        

        

       

 

Date: 12/03/19 
 

Qty                  Description                                Price/ Unit         

Total 
1                 Replace all brick on bottom right column of              $1550.00 

                      Entrance sign 

 

notes:  

Cost includes all labor and materials. 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

                                         Item Cost:  1550.00 

                                            

                                Total cost:   $1550.00 

                                   

 
 



ESTIMATE

Maria Agosta
2090 Continental Avenue, Saint Cloud

FL 34769

(718) 404-7417
(407) 520-7401

Phipps Masonry LLC

55 West Church St. #3208
Orlando, FL 32801

Phone: (704) 689-8822
Email: phippsmasonryllc@gmail.com
Web: phippsmasonry.com

Estimate # 001144

Date 12/02/2019

Description Total

Brick Column Repair and Rebuild $2,200.00

We propose to re-point loose, cracked or deteriorated mortar joints. We propose to remove the
damaged brick and re-lay new brick with fresh mortar.

Subtotal $2,200.00

Total $2,200.00

Page 1 of 6



Page 2 of 6



Page 3 of 6



Page 4 of 6



Page 5 of 6



Phipps Masonry Repair Specialists

1.0  Scope of Work

Phipps Masonry will provide all labor, equipment, material and supervision necessary to perform
the project. We propose to re-point loose, cracked or deteriorated mortar joints. We propose to
remove the damaged brick and haul off debris. We then propose to re-lay new brick with fresh
mortar. Phipps Masonry is not responsible for lawn damage. 

2.0. Pricing

The scope of services will be performed for the lump sum fee stated in page 1. Payment will
cover the materials and labor costs to perform the work. Phipps Masonry will require that the
lump sum fee of this agreement to be paid at the completion of this project. Payments will be
accepted by check, card, or cash. Card payments are subject to a 3% convenience fee.

3.0  Schedule

This proposal is based on operating in a continuous and uninterrupted manner. Phipps Masonry
anticipates that the proposed scope of work can be completed in 1 working day, unless
unforeseen conditions are encountered, or weather delays the project.

4.0  Acceptance

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you this estimate and we look forward to hearing from
you.

This proposal is offered for your acceptance.

Respectfully submitted,

Christopher Phipps
Phipps Masonry LLC, 55 West Church St #3208
Orlando, FL 32801
Cell phone number: 704-778-6626

Your on-site project manager will be:
Christopher Phipps

If you have any questions or concerns during the completion of this project, please contact the
project manager.

By signing this document, the customer agrees to the services and conditions outlined in this
document.

Please sign and date below that you have read and accept this proposal.

Maria Agosta

Page 6 of 6



Scott Teeds Concrete Inc

18601 Frost Dr

Orl孤do F1 32820

Name/Add「ess 

AnthemParkCDD 

2090ContinentalSt 

St.CIoudF134769 

Esti mate

Date �Estimate# 

9/20/2019 �816 

P噂ect 

Desc「iption �Qty �Rate �Totai 

ReplaceBrickAtFrontEntranceOfSubdivision �1 �1,200.00 �1,200.00 

Thankyouforyourbusiness ScottTeed407-765-7915 � �丁otaI �$1,200.00 

ScottTeedsConcreteInc �臆 � � 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



1

Records Lake Mary

From: Patricia Thibault
Sent: Monday, December 02, 2019 2:53 PM
To: Records Lake Mary
Subject: FW: [External] RE: Neptune Concept Plans

Please slate for agenda 
 

Patricia Thibault 
DPFG 
Senior District Manager 
250 International Parkway, Suite 280 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Office (321)‐263‐0132; extension 4205 
Cell (407) 221‐9153 
 

From: Neysa Borkert <nborkert@Orlandolaw.net>  
Sent: Monday, December 2, 2019 2:00 PM 
To: Patricia Thibault <patricia.comings‐thibault@dpfg.com> 
Subject: FW: [External] RE: Neptune Concept Plans 
 
I know you were copied on this and we had some correspondence, however, it seems that there is more time than we 
thought to have this looked at by the Board. With that being said, during my comments in the next meeting, I can pass 
on the updated information we received and find out if the Board would like to entertain a more formal presentation 
from the developer to help in considering the request.  
 
Let me know how you think we should move forward.  
 
Thanks, Neysa 
 

From: Jo Thacker [mailto:Jo.Thacker@nelsonmullins.com]  
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 2:18 PM 
To: Neysa Borkert <nborkert@Orlandolaw.net> 
Cc: Patricia Thibault <patricia.comings‐thibault@dpfg.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: [External] RE: Neptune Concept Plans 
 

WARNING - EXTERNAL EMAIL: Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or attachments. 
Please report any suspicious mail.  

Neysa:   Thank you for getting back to me.   Below please see my responses.  The 2nd reading is actually on Dec. 12th.   I 
think that Kyle has left the City because I have not been able to reach him either.   This is a preliminary concept plan 
approval.   I don’t think the City expected any kind of final agreement before the next meeting but they did want to 
know if it is something that can be addressed before any final concept plan is approved (has to be done within the next 
12 months).     
 
I appreciate all of your help on this and I am hopeful we can work something out.   Thank you again and please have a 
wonderful Thanksgiving.     Jo 



2

 
 

 

  

JO O. THACKER  PARTNER  
jo. thacker@nelsonmull ins.com  

390 NORTH ORANGE AVENUE |  SUITE 1400 

ORLANDO, FL 32801 

T 407.839.4230   F 407.425.8377    

  
NELSONMULLINS.COM    VCARD  VIEW BIO  

 
 
 

From: Neysa Borkert <nborkert@Orlandolaw.net>  
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 1:37 PM 
To: Jo Thacker <Jo.Thacker@nelsonmullins.com> 
Cc: Patricia Thibault <patricia.comings‐thibault@dpfg.com> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: Neptune Concept Plans 
 
Good Afternoon Jo,  
 
I have reviewed the staff report and ordinance for Neptune Village and I had some questions that I posed to the planner 
for the case, Kyle Wilkes, however, I have not heard back from him. In light of the quickly approaching final reading date 
(my understanding is that this project is set to be heard by the city council on December 10th) and the upcoming Anthem 
Park CDD Board meeting date of December 13th, I was wondering if you could respond to the following. 
 
It appears from the Preliminary Master Plan that the applicant is including the Anthem Park CDD’s park property as 
“Open Space”. Is that correct? No, we did not include any property owned by the CDD.  Has the CDD’s park been 
included in the applicant’s open space calculation? The open space calculation comment was just in reference to the 
applicant’s property.  I see from the staff report that as per the current plan the property does not meet the open space 
requirement. Please clarify this for me.  
 
Also, according to our conversation a few weeks ago, City Council at the first reading asked that there be a connection to 
Lexington through the CDD’s property. Have you or the City of St. Cloud’s staff looked at the feasibility of this proposal 
and whether or not it would be consistent with the CDD’s current entitlements?  Not at this time.   I wanted to see if it 
was something that the CDD would consider first.   From what I am being told this Eagle nest has been abandoned for 
many years now.   The City asked my client to start looking into the feasibility of the connection to eliminate trips on 
Canoe Creek because it could be an internal connection between the two developments and because that intersection is 
signalized so certain traffic that wanted to could get to the light. It is my understanding that this park area is within an 
Eagle Protection Zone. Any help or documents you can provide me on this would be appreciated.  
 
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, it is appreciated.  
 
Neysa Borkert 
 
 



3

 
 
Neysa Borkert, Attorney 
111 N. Orange Ave., Suite 2000 
P.O. Box 2873 
Orlando, Florida 32802-2873 
Phone (407) 425-9566  
Fax (407) 425-9596  
Kissimmee (321) 402-0144 
Cocoa (866) 425-9566 
Website: www.orlandolaw.net 
Email: nborkert@orlandolaw.net  
  
Any incoming e-mail reply to this communication will be electronically filtered for "spam" and/or "viruses." 
That filtering process may result in such reply being quarantined (i.e., potentially not received at our site at 
all) and/or delayed in reaching us. For that reason, we may not receive your reply and/or we may not receive it 
in a timely manner. Accordingly, you should consider sending communications to us which are particularly 
important or time-sensitive by means other than e-mail.  
Confidentiality Note: This e-mail, and any attachment to it, contains privileged and confidential information 
intended only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named on the e-mail. If the reader of this e-mail is 
not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, 
you are hereby notified that reading it is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, 
please immediately return it to the sender and delete it from your system. Thank you.  
 
Please be advised that this law firm may be acting as a debt collector and is attempting to collect a debt and 
any information provided will be used for that purpose. 

 
 
 
 

From: Jo Thacker [mailto:Jo.Thacker@nelsonmullins.com]  
Sent: Friday, November 08, 2019 10:43 AM 
To: Neysa Borkert <nborkert@Orlandolaw.net> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: [External] RE: Neptune Concept Plans 
 
Neysha:   See if this works.   Thanks.   Jo 



4



5

 

Confidentiality Notice  
 
This message is intended exclusively for the individual or entity to which it is addressed. This communication may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential 
or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. If you are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy or disseminate this message or any part of it. If 
you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately either by phone (800-237-2000) or reply to this e-mail and delete all copies of this message.  


	1. December Cover and Letter
	2. AP Dec. Agenda Draft v1
	3. EXHIBIT 1
	4. Exhibit 1 - Manager's Report
	5. Exhibit 1A - Landscape Gradesheet
	6. EXHIBIT 2
	7. Exhibit 2 - AP 11-08-19 Meeting Minutes - In Review
	8. EXHIBIT 3
	9. Exhibit 3 - AP - Oct 2019 Financial
	10. EXHIBIT 4
	11. Exhibit 4 - Yellowstone Landscape Agreement NB Rev 11.25 (unexecuted)
	12. EXHIBIT 5
	13. Exhibit 5 - Second Amendment changing staffed hours 10.22.19
	URECITALS
	WHEREAS, District and Vesta entered into that certain Amenity Facility Management, Pool Monitoring, General Facility Maintenance, And Janitorial Maintenance Services contract dated September 1, 2016 and that First Amendment to the Amenity Management A...
	WHEREAS, the Anthem Park Community Development District Board of Supervisors and Vesta desire to modify the staffed hours of the Amenity Center facilities.
	UAGREEMENT


	14. EXHIBIT 6
	15. Exhibit 6A - Proposal - Lee Masonry
	16. Exhibit 6B - Proposal - Phipp Masonry LLC
	17. Exhibit 6C - Proposal - Scott Teeds Concrete
	18. EXHIBIT 7
	19. Exhibit 7 - Discussion - Neptune Concept Plans



